Ewa Wnuk Glawdel

Retracing the footsteps
of the Drawa Forest’s
inhabitants

Trip on the salt route

Drawa National Park



Retracing the footsteps
of the Drawa Forest’s
Inhabitants

Drawa National Park
Drawno 2011



Wydawnictwo Drawienskiego Parku Narodowego

Drawienski Park Narodowy
ul. Le$nikow 2a, 73-220 Drawno
www.dpn.pl

First edition
Author of text: Ewa Wnuk Glawdel
Pictures: Bartlomiej Baranowski

Author of photograhys: Ewa Wnuk Glawdel

Photographys of Niklowy Kamien and of train:
»Der Kreis Arnswalde in alten Ansichten” — Joachim Sanft, Fritz Morke,
Gerhard Hagenstein, Albert Hartwig, Hanna Steiger

Translation:
Pawel Swieca
Ustugi Lingwistyczne
35-310 Rzeszow

tlumaczenia24.pl®
60-214 Poznan

DTP&prepress:

e
STUDIO
GRAFICZNE
PIOTR KURASIAK

www.kurasiak.com
tel. +48 605 543 122

-

: —/ T
* 4k

FhEpEmyERELY
A
Wspolfinansowane ze $rodkoéw
Unii Europejskiej (Europejski
Fundusz Rozwoju Regionalnego)

i
i
.




Landscape and culture

The Drawsko Forest, currently, a dense forest com-
plex, 100 years ago, used to be a mosaic of woods, grazing
and fields. Its present landscape has been mostly formed
by a traditional economy, especially the forest econo-
my with elements of previous traces of human activity.
Over years, settlement has been extending over the ter-
ritories, in which riches of forests and waters can be ex-
ploited. With times, the landscape of forests and agri-
culture has been formed, along with a mosaic of forests,
grazing and fields, on which the settlers were scattered
within forests, conducting various economies based on
natural resources.

Riches of natural resources of the Drawa National
Park causes that anthropological values are not often ob-
served. Despite the lack of famous buildings, it is worth
seeing the elements of human activity and small traces of
the past, which create the specificity of the landscape.

Most significant values of the cultural environment

o Concentration of archaeological locations from
the Mesolithic Period, now the greatest settlement
centre from the regions in Europe

oy Archaeological relicts of glass works - a unique ex-
ample of former forest industry

o Historic hydro-technical systems, irrigating chan-
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nels — a unique monument of technology;

Traces of historic water facilities (powered with wa-
ter force: power plants, saw mills, mills, water supply
systems) - significant monuments of technology;
Protection of the Pomeranian embankment - sig-
nificant monument of fortification technology;
Numerous and legible traces of secluded forest set-
tlements;

Scattered traces of ancient commentaries with rem-
nants of graves;

Numerous and legible traces of the system of ancient
timber yards for rafting

Typical architecture of forest settlements (Ostrowiec,
Mostniki, Zacisze, Rogoznica, Miedzybor, Moczele);
Monumental course of historic roads, paved roads
in settlements and forest roads representing a unique
cultural value

Monumental tree alleys.

We invite you to travel within the Drawsko Forest

and meet its ancient dwellers.



Mill on Kortnica in Bogdanka
HISTORIC TIMES

The first traces of settlement in the territory
of the Drawa National Park and its neighbourhood
dates back to Palaeolithic period. Dense forest com-
plexes of the Drawsko Forest did not favour settle-
ment that is why only the enclaves of fertile soils,
clearings and non-wooded areas used to be settled.
The more numerous traces of human settlement are
known to be from the Middle Stone Age, 6 K years ago.
Hunting and fishing societies, which settled in the vi-
cinity of the Drawsko Forest, used the resources of
fishes and forest game. In the Mesolithic Period, this
area was one of the most intensively settled regions of



the European lowland. The traces of human existence,
mainly small stone tools were mostly found in sandy
upheavals in the vicinity of waters. The oldest archae-
ological findings include a Palaeolithic furnace with
a stone structure from Radecin and a Palaeolithic
shed or chalet discovered in Jaglisk, on the outskirts of
the Drawa National Park The very first new settlers
came here from the Danube, they dealt with agri-
culture and represented the culture of band ware.
They used stone hoes for ground work. Another group,
dealing with soil cultivation and husbandry, repre-
sented the culture of funnel cups. In the Neolithic
Period, there was another group of people, which be-
longed to so called the culture of corded ware and they
dealt mainly with sheep breeding. Next, this group
was included in so called the Early Bronze culture of
Northern Poland. In the Early Iron Epoc, these lands
were included in the range of the Lustian culture, how-
ever, their dwellers were not uniform ethnically and
in Pomerania they shall not be recognised as Proto-
Slavic people. In the third period of the Bronze Epoc,
there was cremation of bodies and grave yards on
which porous ceramics was discovered: bracelet and
a bronze pin wound in a sling. The period of Roman
ruling (3rd - 5th century B.C.) was the time of com-
mercial contact with the people of the Roman Empire,
the Pomerania region was settled by Germanic peo-
ple, connected with Baltic tribes.



Within the area of the vicinity of the Drawa
National Park there are archaeological monuments
having their own terrain form, seen from the ground,
such as: fencing at the Drawa River, north to Drawnik,
ruins of the castle of Drawno, kurgan cemetery at
Dominikowo Wielkie Lake and within the borders
of the Drawa National Park so called Swedish En-
trenchment - fortifications from the 30 year war on
the Drawa River in the vicinity of the former wilder-
ness Zawilcowy Las.

The land, in the period of early Middle Ages,
was settled by Slavic people, then the area became
to be within the authority of Pomeranian tribes.
The vicinity of Drawno along with the Western Po-
meranian, was included into the Polish state by Miesz-
ko I, however the aspirations of Pomeranian dukes
to loosen the bonds with Poland, caused numerous
military clashes. At the beginning of the 13th cen-
tury, the border of Wielkopolska and Pomerania was
shifted north, above Choszczna and Drawna, and the
entire area was included in the Wielkopolska region.
As a consequence of fights of the dukes of Wielkopol-
ska against the dukes of Pomerania, after the death
of Przemysltaw II, there were implemented significant
changes to this region - it was under the authority
of the margraves of Branderburgia up to the Gwda
river. It became part of New Monarchy. Then, there
was the knight dynasty of the Wedels, which played
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a significant role for these lands. The Wedels par-
ticipated in fights with the dukes of Pomerania, sup-
ported Branderburgia, then they returned their prop-
erty to Poland. In the second half of the 14th century
the Land of Walcz with Tuczno and Czlopa was re-
turned to Poland, and the border between Wielkopol-
ska and Branderburgia was established up to the 18th
century within the line of the Drawa and Plociczna,
with slight changes. Since the beginning of the 15th
century, the ruling of Teutonic Knights was com-
menced as the Order purchased the New Monarchy as
the collateral of a loan. This period was full of anxi-
ety and abundant with fights and battles with sup-
porters of the Order against its opponents, which fin-
ished with selling the New Monarchy in 1454 to the
Elector of Barnderburgia. Since the Middle Ages, up
to the 19th century, lasted the process of colonisa-
tion of the Drawsko Forest. During the process many
settlements become void and some others were set-
tled from the beginning. Within the period of the
Middle Ages, there was made the action of coloni-
sation, in which orders played a significant role.
The first appointments were given to the Order of St
John of Jerusalem, however, theyhad no significancein
the history of New Monarchy, however, the Cistercian
Order, coming from France, significantly presented
its presence in that area. Since 1293, the Cistercian
Abbey functioned in Bierzwnik. The order, construct-
ed dams, drained boggy areas, cleared the forest, de-



veloped wastelands and erected mills. In the 30s of
the 16th century, the Cistercian goods were liquidated
and became the part of state-owned domain of Bier-
zwnica. The location of new settlements and populat-
ing deserted villages of the Drawsko Forest was per-
formed in the 16th century, in the period of relative
peacefulness in this area. Riidiger Wedel from Draw-
no performed the colonisation action, along with
the settlement of: Brzeziny, Dominikowi, Glusko,
Ostrowiec, Krepa, Niemiensko, Nowa Korytnica,
Nowa Studnica, Miradz, Roscin, Sitno, Brzezniak.
The next colonisation action was performed by
the State Domain of Branderburgia and was made
in the 17th century. Radachowo was settled, with
a new location, at the salty way from Wielkopolska
to Kolobrzeg, was gained by Zatom. As a result of the
Frederician colonisation, the villages of Leczyn, Most-
niki, Moczele were settled, and at the end of 18th cen-
tury and at the beginning of the 19th century, there
were established manor villages such as Swieciechéw,
Podegrodzie, Borowiec, Glusko, Konotop. Since the
half of the 19th century, after the previous colonisa-
tion actions within the Drawsko Forest, there was
a gradual process of withdrawing the settlement
from forests. The present lands of the Drawa Na-
tional Park were under the Prussian administra-
tion for the entire 19th century; the only vicinity of
Przesiek belonged to the Grand Duchy of Poznan in
the years 1815-1918 with ostensible Polish autonomy.
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The rest of the lands belonged to Branderburgia,
Pomerania and Western Prussia. In the years 1922-
1938, the aforementioned areas were incorporated in
so called the Border March. This territory was located
on the border and remained up to now and is divided
into three voivodships: zachodniopomorskie, lubusk-
ie i wielkopolskie.

MODERN HISTORY

The forest economy marked a visible sign on
the landscape. The domination of pine in the tree
stand, mosaic of stands of various ages, ordered in
a regular sequence farming - young growth - high pole
stand - ancient forest from the west to east, rectangular
grid of forest divisions, network of forest ways, exist-
ence of broad, gradually forested anti-fire lanes, paved
ways that allow transportation of wood from the forest.
This is the result and proof of more than a hundred
years of economy pursuant to changing craft of forest
management. In the first years of the 20th century, there
was a network of towers - anti-fire watching towers, in
which observers exercised their duties. In the 1930s
there were towers on Chiopska Goéra near Jelenia, be-
tween Sitnica and Ostrowieckie Lake, in Stare Osieczno,
near Marta Lake, and west from Golin. Nowadays, there
are only foundations remained. The element of the pre-
vious economy in the forest up to now, is the visible set
of former timber yard for rafting, from which the wood



obtained from the forest was transported by river and
by stone road that made it easier for transportation of
wood from the forest.

In the forest, there are many abandoned and
overgrow former human settlements. Numerous single
settlements or even entire villages were abandoned in
1930s or after the Second World War. The remains of
settlements are differentiated from the vicinity by focus-
es of lilacs and old fruit trees. The greatest non-existent
settlements are Sitno, Podszkle and Springe.

It is worth focusing on the ones that exist and in-
habited: Barnimie, Ostrowiec, Zatom due to interesting
regional architecture, enriching the cultural landscape
of the Drawsko Forest.

Glazing and pitching was developing many
years ago. In several places, when digging in
the ground or observing surfaces of forest ways, it can
be found pieces of glass or wood charcoal - traces of
former industry. Glass works were located in Podsz-
kle, Lask and at the estuary of the Cieszynka river to
the Polociczna river, notes about the glass industry date
back to the 17th century.

Small, however, the element having its per-
centage in the entirety of the cultural landscape of
the forest relies on scattered remains of the old cemeter-
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ies, whose graves are almost completely blended into
the neighbouring greenery as well as scattered sign posts
at stone roads, with completely effaced content.

There was a brewery in Glusko, in Drawno
there was the greatest German factory of fishing nets,
garden gnomes as well as cultivation of vine both
in Drawno and Gtlusko. Glusko i Sitnica constituted
the centre for producing local cheeses, the recipe of
which is reputedly applied up to now in Germany.
The cheese producing plant was erected in 1870.
Since 1870s there were produced cheeses of Glusko,
which were later produced in Glusk. In the year 1945,
the plant ceased its activity, only the housing and pro-
duction building remained.

The component deciding on the character of the
landscape of today forest are small structures that are
scattered within the Drawsko Forest such as: stone road
signs (particularly numerous in the vicinity of Zatom -
Wygon and north to Szczucarz Lake up to Jeleni Rdg),
bricked chapels, pumps made of tree trunks, traces of
anti-fire protection entrenchment (Dominikowskie
Woods, vicinity of Sitnica).

There used to be water mills, saw mills, starch
plants, small water electricity plants and many bridg-
es. Nowadays, there are only ruins of the afore-
mentioned structures. The attractive viewing site



Eel trap - Stara Wegornia on Plociczna

is so called Stara Wegornia on the Plociczna river.
In 1820s there was erected a water mill connected
with the settlement of Ostrowiec and property of
von Sydow from Glusko. The mill named Werder-
mulle was operated by the beginning of the 20th cen-
tury. Up to now, there are relicts of dam structures
and concrete dams. To the left from the dam, there is
a working channel. There were mounted facilities
for fishing eels. By the end of 1970s, there was an eel
processing plant i.e. a trap for eels that go to the sea
for sprawling. It consisted of a wood canal lock with
width of 1.5 m mounted in the wall that separated
the stream way. Below, there was a box equipped with
small bars that allowed free flow of water. The holes in
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the bars were so small that the eel which has been caught
was not able to escape. It was possible to catch even
900 kg of fishes. At that time, there was a bridge that
provided the shortest connection with Czotpa.

It is interesting that there are hydro-technical
structures even if they are not so significant, i.a. irri-
gating channels. The most interesting is the Sicienski
Channel. This is one of the most interesting hydro
technical monuments, whose traces are still visible
in the area of the Drawa National Park. Apart from
the Gluchy Channel and the Suchy Channel, this
played very important roles connected with irrigation,
not only irrigating valleys near Miradz and Glusko
but also used for providing water to fishing ponds
near Rybakowka. The channel was established from
the initiative of Friderick von Sydow, ca. 1820, its
length amounted to 22 km. Its route was as follows:
from Sitno Lake, with right bank of the Polociczna
river, then above the surface and almost bank of
Plociczno and Ostrowieckie Lakes and finishing
on the valleys of Drawa near Glusko and it is char-
acteristic for the slope system of melioration using
the slopes of the land for gravitational leading of waters.
The slope amounted to 30 m. This specific hydro-tech-
nical structure differentiates not only by its length or
range of engineering works, but also interesting history.
Military actions conducted in 1945 on these lands,
led to the break of the active channel in three loca-



Water turbine on Plociczna near Pustelnia

tions near Miradz and Gtusko. Then, the repair works
commenced in 1950s that were to deepen the river
bed within its total length, which ruined the 19th cen-
tury, clay insulation layer. It was not possible to repair
the channel any more. At present, there are bushes
and trees and they lead to vanishing of certain sec-
tions, which will blend into the surrounding landscape.
The proper functioning of the Sicienski Channel is
influenced by smaller hydro-technical structures,
which may be observed on this area. These are not
only suspended bridges and wooden or concrete foot-
bridges but also sinks made of stone or brick or even
a concrete structure, connected with the distribu-
tors of water onto the valleys and relicts of several
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gates. The Sicieniski Channel, led simultaneously, to
the Plociczna river is the only hydro-technical struc-
ture that is not connected with the river. 40 m below
the road bridge, on the Plociczna river, there are settle-
ments of Pustelnia, where is located a small water elec-
tricity plant, not running nowadays. It was established
ca. 1920 in order to provide electricity for the benefit
of the settlement of Pustelnia. This power plant has
a dam with a stable, concrete barrier divided into
four bays, which goes transversely to the river bed.
At the left embankment of the Plociczna river, there is
located a steel water wheel which drives a small gen-
erator located in a bricked building. In the 19th cen-
tury, there was a pitch manufacturing plant, which has
not remained.

The monuments of the technology of the forests
of Drawa constitute also the traces of a forest horse-
drawn railway Springe - Sitnica - Jelenie — Krepa,
which was used to transport milk to the cheese plant
in Sitnica, the remnants of the former complex of
a paper-mill and mills Bogdanka - Jazwiny — Séwka.

Itisworth seeing the structure actingasan electric-
ity water plant, paper-mill, roofing paper mill and the fac-
tory of wood wool in Jazwiny, which was erected in 1814.
The production of the paper was performed by 1879, in
the following years roofing paper was produced and since
1891 wood wool which was used as packaging for glass.



70 years later, the premises of this factory were converted
so as to satisfy the needs for the nearby culture of trout.
Among the industrial buildings, it is worth paying atten-
tion to the complex of the rural technology in Gtusko:
forging shop, brewery, shooting-range, water supply
system, irrigating systems. The relicts of these struc-
tures are visible nowadays. The interesting structure
had a water mill on the Slopica river, in the settlement
of Miedzybor.

The inhabitants of the Drawsko Forest ran vari-
ous economies based on natural resources. The remains
of former pond households are:

<8 Rybakowki Pond and the Gluchy Channel

<8 remains of Zawislak’s Ponds, UFO Ponds, ponds
in Rynna Moczelska, ponds located west from
Kocie Lake.

¢8- Paciorkowe Ponds on the Sucha river.

Undoubtedly, the most interesting hydro-tech-
nical structure in the area of the Drawa National Park
is the electricity water plant Kamienna that has been
working since 1903. Kamienna represents a character-
istic, for the beginning of the 20th century, model of
a hydroelectricity plant in the area of the Drawa Nation-
al Park and is perceived as the most interesting technical
monument within Poland.
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Through Drawa in the vicinity of Drawnik

Theeasternpartofthe DrawaNational Parkiscrossed
with the line of the Pomeranian Wall - the German line of
fortification goingalongtheformerborderofthe Reichwith
Poland, erected in the years 1935-38. These areas include
the section from Tuczna up to the mouth of the Mierzecka
Struga, where the remains of the Wall are still visible.
These are fortification structures such as: shelters, barri-
ers, armoured observation towers, field fortification or
anti-tank trenches and slopes and the line of trenches.
The greatest part of them constitutes military shelters.
Military structures of the Pomeranian Wall within
the Drawa National Park constitute a forest attraction;
the greatest complex of fortification is located in the vi-
cinity of Stare Osieczno, as well as to smaller extent in
the vicinity of Rybakowki, Ostrowieckiego Lake, Pustelnia
and Gwiazda.
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Trip on the Salt Route

It is interesting that going on a trip with a red
route from Drawno through Barnimie, Zatom, Moczele
to Stare Osieczno, there will be the historic route of salt
keepers. The commercial route from the middle ages,
which was used for transporting salt from Kolobrzeg to
Wielkopolska was called the salt route. This route goes
parallel to the right bank of the Drawa River.

The trip starts in Drawnik, the camping site
on the Drawa river, 1.5 km south from Drawno.
There are only ruins remained after the former settle-
ment, known as the Drawa Mill. The name comes from
the former water mill. In the Middle Ages, there was
a ford here, the course of the March route - the historic
road leading from New March to the inside of the Teu-
tonic State. In the 19th century, there were two mills
and distillery here. North from the ruins, in the forest,
there is a hill - probably the former fort. Next, there is
adevastated Evangelical graveyard thatishidden in bush-
es. On the southern part of the road, there are ruins of
a manor house and remains of the park complex.
There are some exotic kinds of trees (e.g. walnut, Cau-
casian fir and swamp oak) as well as a monumen-
tal lime with small leaves (435 cm in perimeter) and
a witch elm (365 cm in perimeter). A little bit south
from the remains of the park, on the slope of the Drawa
valley, there is an oak with the perimeter of 432 cm.
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At the Drawnik route: there are crossroads of: walk-
ing red, horse-riding and the natural route “Drawnik”
which is worth visiting.

Directing along with the red route towards south, we
will reach Barnimie after 3 km. The route leads the right
bank of the Drawa river.

Barnimie is a village located on the Draw-
sko Clearing, on the left bank of the Drawa riv-
er. It was probably located in the 18th century.
In the 14th century, the village belonged to
the Giintersbergs from Zlocieniec and then
the Wedles from Drawno - founders of the church.
In 1627, during the 30 year war, on the fields near
Barnimie, there was a battle of emperor’s troops with
Protestants. During theSwedish Deluge, in 1655,
the king of Sweden Charles Gustavwas going through
Barnimie, directing to Poland, occupied by histroops.
In 1657, the troops of the commander-in-chief Ste-
fan Czarniecki crossed the Drawa river.

Worth visiting:

¢8 Gothic church made of stone (galvanised at pre-
sent) from the 12th century, rebuilt in the 15th
century. The church was located near the tow-
er and bell-tower, covered with a high shin-



gle helmet, constructed in the 18th century,
at present, renovated. Inside of the church,
there is a renaissance pulpit from 1600,
the main altar from 1608, a neo-gothic bap-
tismal font from the end of the 19th century.
The apse and the vestibule were construct-
ed in the year 1900, from this period are neo-
renaissance organ gallery and matroneum.
The church has a baroque grave slab of the Ger-
man pastor died in 1670 and two slabs from
the 19th century.

The remains of the manor house: park with
the area of ca. 7 ha from the first half of the 19th
century, with a huge clearing in the central part,

Memorial of the palace in Barnim
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on which there
was a  palace.
Theoutbuildingand
the gate build-
ing from the 19th
century remained.
The park  has

a very interest-
ing location, there
are many decorative and monumental trees
(the most attractive is tuliptree as well as old oaks,
beeches of a purple kind, Canadian coniferous tree
and other).

The village has an interesting architecture, typical
for forest settlements. There are typical red brick
houses of a simple shape, mostly erected on stone
underpinning. Gabled roof, with angle of 45 de-
grees, covered with red tiles. Examples of this ar-
chitecture maybe seen in other settlements: Zatom,
Sitnica, Glusko. There are also stone buildings e.g.
in Rogoznica
and  nearby
border of DPN
Dominikowie
or  bolt-like.
4 bolt like
housing build-
ings with utili-
ty buildings are

Ziania

Glaucous Dog Rose



located in the settlement of Os-
trowiec, 4 km north-east from
Glusko. Typical windows with
arectangular shape, with straight
or slightly arc ending were di-
vided in a crossed manner.
Typical fencing of housholds
was made of wood, vertical slats,
horizontal poles and boards
were used for fencing
the utility buildings.
Each house had a gar-
den. One may find
several kinds of plants
and bushes from for-
mer times. Such tra-
ditional, cultivated in
the Drawsko Forest
plants are:
 bushes: lilacs, jasmine, wild roses (i.a. white flow-
er, French, hun-
dred leaves, Frank-
furter, blue, red),
hawthorns, plums
including  cherry
plum, mirabelle
plum, various cor-
nuses, red current,
privet, mahogany,

Oregon-grape
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flowering quince, hazel.
perennial: marigolds,
asters, chrysanthe-
mum, zinnia, dahlia,
phloxes, carnation, iris-
es, lilies, night-scented
stock, poppy, mallows,
swordtail, columbine,
peonies, stonecrops, sunflowers, snowdrop,
scillas, periwinkles.

herbs: basil, savory, tarragon, caraway, dill,
lovage, lavender, marjoram, lemon, mint, pars-
nip, wormwood, rosemary, camomile, nettle,
salvia, thyme.

Mirabelle plum
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Butterfly-bush
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Honeysuckle (Lonicera periclymenum)
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( We cross the river
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The Drawa river

Drawa is a right-bank tributary of the Note¢ riv-
er, being ca. 200 km long, with the area of 3300 km*
The begining of the river starts near Polczyn Zdrdj,
and flows into the Note¢ River below Krzyz. The name
of the river is old and mysterious, according to lin-
guists, it comes from the times of the Indoeuropean
language origin (from the stem dreu - hurry, run):
the same name has one of the greatest tributary of
the Danube. The Drawa river at the level of Drawno
flows 10 m’ per second, at the height of Kamienna -
its 15 m’, and at the tribuatry of the Note¢ river, in
Drawiny - more than 20 m’. The average amplitude of
the water within a year amounts to ca. 40-50 cm.
The character of the river is much differentiated: from
the lazy sections in an extended valley (e.g. Prostynia
— Roscin), ending with fragments of a great slope, fast
current and stony bed - resembling mountain rivers.
Very interesting nature: differentiation of the character
of the flow reflects the differentiation of water flora and
fauna. Particular sections present the habitat of trout,
grayling, barbel and bream. In the river there are al-
most 30 kinds of a fish. The most common are in all sec-
tions of the river: roach, perch, gudgeon, white bream,
chub, spirlin and burbot. The most interesting fishes of
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the Drawa river, however less numerous are: trout, com-
mon minnow, bullhead, vimba bream and grayling.
These are the kinds that are very challenging, appear-
ing only in clear well oxyganted waters. Up to 1980s,
spawning of salmon was made in the Drawa river.
After the extinction of this kind, in 1995 it was made
an attempt to put it to the Drawa back. In the river,
there are also connected with clear water: red algea,
Hildenbrandtia rivularis (red coating on underwater
stones), sponges ad bryozoa, on shallow pools under-
water valleys of batrachum, sparganium and knotgrass.
Within the entire length of the river, within the bound-
ary of the National Park, there are natural processes in-
fluencing nature of the river, their valley e.g. landslides
on the slopes, shaping the river bed under the impact
of knocked trees in its flow.

Worth visiting:

<8 stone - the monument on the clearing near
the bridge on the Drawa river. The monument
made of grey granite in honour of John Paul II
The dwellers of the village along with the group of
canoeists erected the monument. Karol Wojtyla
covered all canoe routes in Poland: Brda, Czarna
Hancza, Wda, Drawa, San, Lyna, Kanal Elblaski,
Parseta, Dunajec, Gwda, Krutynia. He canoed
the Drawa river twice in 1955 and 1967.
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“It was great on the Drawa - who knows
the Drawa river the Lake District, does not need
explanations. Multi-kilometre sections of se-
cluded regions, desert and piece as well as good
weather. The Drawa Lake District was a great na-
ture reserve, water lilies, yellow water lilies, many
other water plants. The trees that were knocked
down by the storm made barriers to the flow of
the river so as you had to slide your canoe under
the trees or pull the canoe over the tree...”

“Pope we don’t know” by Stanistaw Stolarczyk.
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Watykan, Wielkanoe, 2005 r.
Drogi Pame Dyrektorze,

Bardzo dzigkuje za zyczenia swigleczne, kiore serdecznie odwzajemniam

Zycze glebokiego udziatu w laskach paschalnych, aby Poranck Wielkiej
Niedzieli rozjasnil wszelkie smutki i troski, napelnil serce pokojem i
wdzigeznodei za to, ze Chrystus pozostal z nami w Eucharystii aby nam pomagaé
wzrastaé w mitosel, byé naszg moeq i silg w trudach Zycia.

Niech Zmartwywstaly Jezus rozraduje serce laska i blogoslawiefistwem a
Matka Najéwigtsza otacza opicks na kazdy dzien.

Z wdzigeznoscig za modlitwy w intencji Ojca Swiclegu i # serdecanym
pozdrowi radosnym, wielk ym

ALLELUJA!

3 | Sy Rl “

Abp Stanistaw Dziwisz
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Since the end of 1994 Drawna National Park communicated with the Vatican and
John Paul II. This Easter card is dated 02.04.2005
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We go south. We descend from the salty water; the red

route goes through a stone paved road, we turn and go
at the riverside of the Drawa. Here, on the area of strict

protection of Debina, the nature path starts.

In the wilderness of Debina more than 4 ha of
the forest is protected along with hornbeam, oak and
beech, with characteristic flora of undergrowth for
this kind of forest. Broadleaved forests are the kind of
a forest dominated by hornbeams with: oaks, beeches
as well as maples, lindens and elms. The undergrowth
include: windflowers, hepatica, violets, and common
ivies. In the central part of Poland, broadleaved forests
are the most common and dominant type of a forest,
however in the landscape of Pomerania, there are also
beech forests.

The most beautiful broadleaved forests are
in the area of DPN in the valley of the Drawa and
Plociczna rivers.

In Debina, there is visible aging and natural
dynamic of old oak and beech trees, made free from
the economic pressure. Before establishing the Park,
there was a nature reserve here, since 1990, it was
the area of strict protection of the Park.

_ J

33



The protection is is the place of the processes
that are performed in ecosystems regardless of their
direction, there is no intervention and no actions im-
plemented. It is permitted to collect seeds so as to re-
tain the gene pool of particular kinds of trees.

4 2
The path goes to the place of the probable military cross-
way through the Drawa river of Czarniecki troops, then
we pass 130 year old larches and we go out of the forest

to the red route. We go down a paved road.
N J

Stone roads

They have a monumental character of former
roads and paved surfaces of forest roads. The stone
material was drawn by ice sheet coming from Scandi-
navia to Pomerania. It was ca. 15-18th years ago. Later,
the stone was collected from the nearby fields. With
time, the stone was used for building roads, houses and
churches. Stone pavements are concentrated in form of
long sections in the western part of the Forest (Moczele
— Osieczno, Moczele - Wygon, Zatom - Radachowo)
as well as short sections strengthening sands and up-
hill roads in the eastern part. Some of the road section
in the Drawsko Forest was built by French prisoners
within the framework of war reparation after the lost
war with Prussia in the years 1870-71. The roads allow-
ing for colonisation of the Forest were also built so as
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Walk on a stone road in Moczele

to celebrate the national holidays in Germany, includ-
ing the anniversary of Hitler’s power. However, short
sections in sandy places were built by German forest-
ers so as to streamline the transportation of wood.

Apart from that, the present-day are-
as of DPN and its vicinity included important
transportation routes:

<8 March route - the historic road leading from New
March to the inside of the Teutonic State;

8 salt route through Moczele to Pomerania, medieval
commercial route, which was used for transport-
ing salt from Kotobrzego to Wielkopolska, along
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the right bank of the Drawa river;

8 route Berlin - Barnimie - Dominikowo -
Mirostawiec — Gdansk;

<8 route Stargard — Recz - Drawno - Sieniwa - Walcz,
the Stargard road is the historic route consistuing
a trade route from Wielkopolska to Pomerania, lo-
cal name existed before the Second World War.

After ca. 200 m, we descend from the old stone road
and turn left, so as to visit the Postglacial Rock in
Grabowy Jar.

Postglacial Rock

Formerly Niklowy Kamieri and nowadays Wydrzy Glaz
Now it is surrounded by natural landmark called Zawilcowy Las
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The remains after the last glacial epoch are errat-
ic boulders. They are part of the rock material drawn
by ice sheet from Scandinavia. Some rocks may have
a concrete place in Scandinavia, which was drawn and
included in the mass of the ice sheet. The rocks are
named with leading erratics. At present, in the area of
DPN, erratic boulder is in the situ position, i.e. in the
place where they became deposited by the ice sheet.

The leading erratics in situ include the greatest
Otter Rock and Postglacial Rock in Grabowy Jar. Both
are granites from Smaland (region in Sweden from
which the rock comes) in the south-eastern part of
Sweden. Both rocks have been measured and on the
basis of that, it is possible to calculate their weight.
The Otter Rock has the perimeter of 14.2 m and
weighs 45.3 t, the Postglacial Rock in Grabowy Jar has
10.4 m and 43.5 t respectively.

After the forest nursery, the route goes left, directing into
the forest clearing. It is a binduga.

Since ca. 1850, there was wood transported on
the Drawa river. The main receipient of the wood from
the Drawsko Forest was the saw mill that was develop-
ing on the left bank of lower Drawa, close to the tibutary
of Mierzecka Struga. The important ports of receiving
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4 A

_ J

wood from the Drawsko Forest was Drezdenko, Santok
and Trzebicz on the Note¢ river and then in the 1950s,
Stare Osieczno.

Binduga

Binduga (from German binden=bind), is a forest
clearing, former wood storehouse, located at the river-
side. The name includes not only the land storehouse, but
also the water part that is directly connected to the store-
house. The fragment of the slope, strengthened with wood
beams, after which wood was slid, was named rolling.
The trunks thrown into water were connected with the
use of perches and nails in so called sheets, the sheets were
linked with chains, one after the other in a line, known as
a raft. The raft was controlled by means of: by the log to
brake and a forged perch for pushing off. In 1979, there
was the last organised rafting on the Drawa river. At pre-
sent, at the Drawa riverside, in the section of DPN, there
are 12 inactive bindugs. They differentiate with separate
flora and a separate composition of trees on the slope.
As a result of spontaneous forestation of former habitat of
oak complexes and plants typical for forest clearings.

The route goes to the camping site Barnime, here we can
rest and make a bonfire. Between Barnimie and Zat-
omie, we go through the area of strict protection known
as Drawsko Den.




Drawsko Den is a 2.5 kilometre fragment of
the Drawa, where old, beech forests with a character of
acid beech trees cover both slopes of the valley. There are
broadleaved forests at the riverside. The undergrowth in-
clude: i.a. lily of the valley, blackberry, hair grass etc. Ca.
1940, there were designed to build a dam, which was to
separated the river, as a result of which there would be
made a barrier reservoir, reaching Dubie Lake in Draw-
no. The planned electricity water plant was to be included
in so called Cascade of the Drawa. The implementation
was not performed. In the years 1974-1990, the clear-
ing is protected as the 12 ha zone of strict protection
in the landscape reserve “Drawa” and then it was included
in the structure of the Drawa National Park. Particular at-
tention shall be paid to: complex of the forest typical for
the basin of the Drawa river, beautiful landscape as well as
one of the rarest places of mountain ash.

In the clearing Drawsko Den, there are protect-
ed the processes of fluctuation and natural functioning
of ecosystems of oak and broadleaved forests as well as
the geodynamic processes at the riverside of Drawa and
the natural dynamics of slope forests.

4 A

The route goes along the Drawa where it is a beautiful
view of the river. We go out of the forest to an extended
Zatom Clearing. The Drawa National Park included it
into the zone of strict protection “Zatom’”.

N J
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Wild Servicestree — sorbus terminalis
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Zone of strict protection “Zatom”

It was established on the area of 23.84 ha, in or-
der to maintain the natural dynamics of slope forests
and the processes of succession on postarable lands.
The protection includes:

8 Colourful sand turfs,

<8 Place of the protected rare species in Pomerania of
martagon (Liliom martagon),

<8 Place of daphne mezerum and sorbus torminalis.

In the area of Zatom, there are protected the
processes of fluctuation and natural functioning of
ecosystems of oak and broadleaved forests as well as
the geodynamic processes at the riverside of Drawa
and the natural dynamics of slope forests as well as
the processes of spontanous succession of abandoned
post-arable lands.

4 2
You can see the village of Zatom. Near the road lead-
ing to the village, there is a tree of great dimensions.
The tree before you stan is a common maple. It is one of
the thickest maples in Poland, with the permiter of more
than 520 cm. Its name suggests the former salt route.
We enter Zatom.

N J
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Zatom

The beginnings of the settlement located on
the right riverside of the Drawa are not known. Prob-
ably Zatom has existed since the 15th century. The de-
velopment of he village was connected with the inflow
of German settlers and was performed in the 1920s.

e Tl T T
o Sy, S 45

Old, no longer existing church in Zatom
Worth visiting:

<8 In the central part of the village there is a Bless-
ed Virgin Mary church erected in the years 1987-
91. It is located in the area of the former temple.
In the vicinity, there is an old building and com-



plex of yews around the foundation of the former
monument of the dwellers died during the First
World War. There are also several houses from
the first half of the 19th century with traditional
development and brick with the details typical
for the region.

The private allotment in the south-western part
of the village is covered with an oak with the pe-
rimeter of 500 cm. The linden alley goes through
the village. The two thickest linden trees (up to 415

of perimeter) are located nearby the church.

[

The route goes left behind Zatom, we go towards
the Drawa riverside. This section is rather monotonous,
but we pass pine forests and enter an old oak and beech
forest. We turn left and we go to a forest clearing with
a paved road - bindugs named Saint Pasture. At the bot-
tom, in the Drawa bed is the aforementioned Otter Rock.
In the shallow water, it is possible to observe red stones
with a hildebrandtia and green sponge. We go further,
the route goes towards Moczel. On this section, the view
is particularly beautiful. We look at the river from a high
30 m river bank.

\

Drawa Meanders

Meanders (river bends, turns river bed) appear
to be mostly in lowland rivers. The Drawa river is one
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of the most beautiful meandering rivers in Poland.
In the Drawa National Park, the river goes through an
extended sandur plain. This is one of the most beau-
tiful section of the Drawa. The valley is partly deep-
ly indented in the sand and gravel surface of sandur.
The height of the valley slopes reaches locally up to 50
m height. In the park section, there are numerous me-
anders, whose angles exceed more then 180 degrees.
The bending of the river is proven by the fact that
the length of the Drawa river bed amounts to 40 km
in a straight section of the valley.

4 A

There are also old, monumental oaks. After ca. 1.5
km, there are marks painted blue. This is the bound-
ary of the most known, protected area in the Park.
It is Radecin.

_ J

Present-day clearing “Radecin” was a protected
area before the war. This area, as a former Saint Pas-
ture, underwent the natural observation. In 1901, apart
from the present-day area of strict protection, the Ger-
man forester, prof. Schwappach established research
surfaces, in which he performed growths of single oak
trees. After the war, in 1946, “Radecin” was registerd in
the list of reserves by A. Wodziczko and Z. Czubinskiego
in the materials of inventory of nature reserves on re-
covered western lands” In 1964, the resolution of
the Minister of Forestryand Wood Industry recognised it
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Historical bridge over Drawa in Moczele

as the nature reserve. The aim of establishing the reserve
was (and is) retaining the fragments of a primary oak
and beech forest due to scientific and didactic reasons
on the Drawa river (the most precious forest complex of
300-400 year old beeches and oaks) and self-shaping of
this complex. Due to profound shading, undergrowth
flora is poorly developed. The majority of plants bloom
in early spring before the growth of leaves. These are i.a.
windflower, hepatica, martagon, pulmonaria obscura.
With the moment of establishing the Drawa National
Park i.a. the establishment of the heighest form of pro-
tection the nature reserves were liquidated along with
the establishment of strict protection areas. At present,
“Radecin” covers 184 ha.
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In the middle of the road between Radecin and Moczele,
on the right, we may observe cast iron crosses. It is an
old, inactive cementary.

Former cemeteries, scattered throughout
the forests of the Drawsko Forest are the proof of
much denser settlement than nowadays. Almost each
of the settlements had its cemetery. Cemeteries lasts
longer than houses, though, the former also undergo
gradual devastation.

For the cemeteries of the Drawsko Forest, there
are characteristic graves in form of a cut tree trunk,

A grave of a smith at the cemetary in Ostrowiec



Cementary Ostrowiec
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symbolising a cut tree of life. The dwellers of the for-
est were very attached to the forest, they could pattern
the trunk in stone, that a tourist may treat it as a real
tree trunk at a glance.

Apart from the typical forms of graves, there are
also unique objects. These are the graves of a forester
with the Saint Hubertus deer in Miradz, grave in form
of an open book in Moczele, grave with blacksmith’s
insygnia in Ostrowiec.

[ We go straight and enter Moczele. j

48

Moczele is a small forest settlement located on
the bend of the Moczele channel, in the vicinity of
tributory of Moczele to the Drawa river, 3.5 km north
west from Glusko. In the vicinity, there was an archeo-
logical discovery, the oldest trait of a human being in
the area of the Drawsko Forest, dates back to the fin-
ishing of Paleolithic e (ca. 9 K ago). The present set-
tlement was founded in 1750 by the regional office in
Bierzwnik. At the beginning of the 19th century, apart
from the manor, there was a pitch plant, water mill and
a saw mill. Flax was cultivated. Along with the village
located at the other riverside Springe, it constituted
a great settlement complex inside the Drawsko Forest.
Before the Second World War, Moczele were inhabited
by more than 130 persons. After the war, the area be-



came secluded. The contemporary name of the settle-
ment comes from the name of the Moczel stream that
enters to the Drawa river.

Worth visiting:

<8 Concrete road bridge with fantastic cultural value,
1-bridge span, arc span, front shield plastered and
decorated. The bridge has an original barrier and
surface made of paved blocks.

4 2
We follow the red route, old paved road south to
Stare Osieczno. Ca. 1 km from the development of
Moczele, on a high slope of the Drawa valley, there
are ruins of the forester’s cottage Bukowa Gora.
There we can admire a beautiful view of the valley

and the Moczele channel.
N J

The Moczele Channel is a land channel with
a parallel course, transverse to the Drawa valley.
It made its shape due to melting and flowing waters of
a glacier. It stretches from Wygon in the west, through
the lands between Drawa and Plociczna, clearing of
Zo6twia Klo¢, up to the valley of Cieszynki in the east.
The differentiated shape of the land, landscape of oak
forests, course of channel lakes and turfs causes that
it is one of the most interesting parts of the forest on
the Drawa. In beech trees and turf lands there are plac-
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es for rare and protected plant species: southern adder-
stongue, yellow water-lily, narrow-leaved bittercress,
which grow only in several locations in Pomerania.

4 )

The route goes along the Drawa. After 1.5 km, we
will reach the camping site Trout, former binduga.
Here, we may rest and make a bonfire in the market place.
We cross the Drawa near the settlement Zeleznica in
order to reach Gtusko. We cross the river on a wooden
bridge having 12 spans and constructed in 1941.

N J

Glusko was established from a manor found-
ed by Ruediger von Wedel in the years 1560-70.
In the 19th century, Glusko was a great centre of
the property of Frideric von Sydow, famous for breeding
cattle and sheep as well as cheeses of Glusko produced
in the first half of the 19th century. Since the 1870s,
the production of cheeses was transferred to Sitnica.

Worth visiting:

<8 remains of the manor house from the 19th century
and the court from the first half of the 20th cen-
tury, before the war the school of forestry - now
the seat of the Forestry District Office;

<8 neogothic Blessd Virgin Mary of Czestochowa
church. The building was primary erected as
a brewery. The brewery was founded in 1820 by
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Frederic von Sydow. After his death, in 1849, the
walls were used for building a protestant church.
Atpresent, itisa Roman and Catholic church. In 1900,
it was equipped with two bells, made by G. Colliera
from Zehlendorf. The church, apart from two other
buildings located in Z6twino and Stare Osieczno,
is perceived as the most beautiful bricked structure in
the area of the Drawa National Park and its vicinity;
The remains of the water powered, water supply
system of the village erected ca. 1900. It is located
between the Gluchy Channel (below Rybakéw-
ka) and a huge fish pond 500 m below Glusko.
The level of water was used for powering
the pump between the channel and the fish pond.
The water supply system drew water to Glusko,
the pump was powered with bladesin form ofa trough.
The piston pump produced by John from Cho-
szczna fed the water to the reservoir located on
the hill behind the church. Then it went through pip-
ing system to receipients. The water supply system
functioned up to the break in the Gluchy Channel
in 1968.

The Gluchy Channel was built in the first half of
the 19th century by Frederic von Sydow and was
used for irrigating fish ponds of the present-day
Rybakowka and irrigating valleys of the Drawa.
It is 6 km long and goes from Ostrowieckie
Lake to the valleys below Glusko. The channel
went along the right bank of the Plociczna river.
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When, in 1968, water broke the embankment and
flowed over the channel to the Plociczna river,
the channel was rebuilt and played its role again.
The channel is connected with other structures i.a.
valves at the outflow from Ostrowieckie Lake, road
bridge on the road Glusko-Ostrowiec.

Former blacksmith’'s workshop, changed into a car-
penter’s workshop after 1945. Along with the wa-
ter mill (in the place of the present boiler house)
and former brewery, it constituted the element
of the complex of manors from the first half of
the 19th century;

Shooting gallery, erected in 1926 for the stu-
dents of the school of foresters from Glusko.
On the concrete wall, near the butt, there is an inscrip-
tion “Erbau K. Kriiger 1927” - built by K. Kriiger 1927.
It has a plan, structure and equipment from
the period of construction - butt, bunker for oper-
ating shields). The shooting galleries before the Sec-
ond World War functioned also in nearby Przesieki.
At present it is used by the Forestry District Office
in Glusko.

Reinforced concrete Road Bridge from ca. 1910,
despite the repair in 1997, it retained the pri-
mary shape, material and structure, howev-
er, the surface made of stone was replaced by
the bituminous surface.

Unique elm alley (along the road to Drawno) and
oak alley (along the road to Osieczno);



<8 Stone road with great cultural values

‘8 Tourist Information Point is located in Glusko
where you can buy maps and guidebooks as well as
permits for staying and fishing within the Drawa
National Park.

One and half kilometres south from Gtusko, there is an
electricity water plant “Kamienna”.

Electricity water plant “Kamienna”

After the lapse of five years since the moment
of erecting the first electricity water plant in the world,
in 1896 there were commenced first works connect-
ed with building a water power plant. It was built on
the Drawa river, below Glusko, at a small settlement
established in the 18th century in the place of a for-
mer pitch plant. The stage of fall was made next to
the factory of carbide. The industrial operation of
the water power plant with the power of 0.96 MW dates
back to the year 1903. At first, the power was used for
producing carbide, but soon, along with the develop-
ment of transferring lines, the power was supplied
to the choszczenski, pyrzycki, strzelecki poviats and
part of a mysliborski poviat. In the year 1921, the wa-
ter power plant was included into the national net-
work. Up to now, there are unchanged facilities of two
hydro sets with turbines by Francis from 1893 and Es-
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cher Wyss from Switzerland in 1898, generators pro-
duced by AEG from Berlin and system regulators Voith.
An overhead crane from 1909 is also very interesting and
located in the machinery hall. It is worth seeing two oper-
ating dams that supply water to turbines, three-chamber
neutral dam, 21-chamber, located on the right arm, route
for fishesand not used platform for rafts. Thewoodenroute
for fishes and the platform were constructed along with
the power plant, its presentlookis thanksto the modernisa-
tion works, which were performed in the years 1982-1989.
The originality of the architecture is confirmed by monu-
mental buildings, which include the main building, house-
hold building and switch gear with a transformer plant.
At present, the functioning water power plant “Kamien-
na’ is under the authority of the Power Plant “Enea” in
Gorzéw Wielkopolski.

In the vicinity of fish ponds Rybakéwka and in the vi-
cinity of the camping site Kamienna, we may encounter
the traces of glass works from the 19th century.

Historic glass works

Very first notes about the glass industry date
back to the 17th century. Glass works were located
in Podszkle, Lask and at the estuary of the Cieszynka
river to the Polociczna river. The initiator of building
the glassworks was Frederic von Sydow. In Podszkle,



there was a port, to which coal from Silesia was trans-
ported on barges on the Odra, Warta i Note¢ river. Its re-
mains regard the channel diverting from the Drawa river,

at present full of bushes.
Red tourist route was marked.

Even the route goes to Stare Osieczno and further
to Wielkopolska, we finish the trip at the camping
site of Kamienna. We have walked more than 30 km,
it is time to rest.

See you on the route.

4 A
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Other interesting places in the vicinity
of the Drawa National Park

Drawno:

<8 Castle hill over Grazyna Lake, with the remains
of the Wedels' Castle. The castle was rebuilt in
a renaissance residence around the year 1600.
Two-storey building was surrounded with two levels
of wall and with a dry moat. The drive way went from
the Polish Gate and entrance between lakes, led from
the eastern section. Since the first half of the 17th cen-
tury the castle was devastated. Its present day devasta-
tion results from Swedish troops in 1675 and Russian
artillery in 1758. Up to now, there are only two cor-
ners, which used to be part of a huge housing estate.
The view of the Lake and City is from the hill.

<8 Gothic church, constructed in the 15th century and
rebuilt in the 17th and 19th century. Inside the church
there is a baroque altar and apse with the figures of
evangelists, dating back to the 18th century.

<8 Monumental urban layout of the city. After the line of
former municipal fortifications, finally dismantled in
1852, there are Ogrodowa i Tylna streets. In the city
centre, there are several narrow front houses from
the 18th and 19th centuries, plastered at present.

<8 Artesian wells from which there is water flowing with
great pressure.

<8 'The post building is constructed at the beginning of



the 20th and the beginning of the 20th century.

<8 Manor from the 19th century with a gable roof, with
a jerking head of the roof, the former hamlet of Za-
wodzie, established by Ruedigera Wedla w 1570.

<8 A European white elm with original, supporting
roots, growing at the back of the trading square.

<8 Cemetery at Choszczenska street (the road to Cho-
szczna) - established at the first half of the 20th cen-
tury with valuable trees. They are connected with
19th century traces remained with single graves and
great trees.

<8 'The vicinity of a city are enriched with sandy hills.
At the road to Swieciechowa - Starling Hill be-
fore the war known as the Silver Hill (121m).
There used to be a triangular tower, with a wide view of
theneighbourhood. Now; thereisanobservationtower
of the Forestry District Office Drawno. Starling Hill is
a very interesting place for the lovers of palacontol-
ogy; sand and gravel may include fossil shells sponges
and bryozoas. At the road to Barnimie - Wine Hill
— the name is connected with former cultivation of
vine. There is still visible a set of walking alleys, some
great trees such as a black pine.

Borowiec:
@ Park and palace complex with monumen-

tal oaks, hunting palace from the beginning of
the 20th century.
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Former square of the property with remained house-
hold buildings from the end of the 19th century

Dominikowo:

‘e

‘e

Roman church made of stone from the first half
of 14th century, rebuilt in the 17th century, with
a framework hall and a detached square bell tow-
er in the lower part of a framework wood and in
the top — wooden. It is covered with a hip roof, bell
from 1630. Inside, there are precious facilities from
the first half of the 17th century, the main altar
with low reliefs - 1610, apse and organ gallery, sup-
ported on two poles, with a balustrade decorated
with polychrome. The organ prospect dates back to
theend ofthe 17th century, thetinbaptismal fontfrom
the 18th century.

Brick and stone housing and maintenance estate
from the turn of the 19th and 20th century.

Konotop:

e

‘e

Ruin of a baroque palace from the second half of
the 18th century

Extended park from the 20th century with huge
oaks known as “Amber Oaks” Family cementary
from the 19th century with ruins of the grave.



Miedzybor:

¢ The buildings were erected in 1932 as the school
for neighbouring settlements and the teacher’s
house. Children from Konotop, Jazwina, Sow-
ka, Bukowa Dolina (Bogdanka) and sometimes
Zatom attended the school. This place was not sur-
rounded by a dense forest: towards Bogdanka,
on the right side of the road to Drawno, there were ar-
able fields. Since the Second World War, the settlement
functions a forester’s cottage.

<& The relict of a mill on the Slopica river. Since ca.
1990, in this place there was erected a mill named
Koscian, animal bones were reputedly milled so
as to produce soap. Up to now, there are only re-
mains of the foundations of the former mill.
Water that ran the mill was led by the channel
with the length of ca. 1.5 km, which diverted from
the Stopica, above the road to Drawno, and led along
the valley and wooden aqueduct above the flow
of the river. It was a unique technical solution.
The water led with the channel, apart from run-
ning the mill wheel, was distributed on the valleys,
on both sides of the river, so as to irrigate them.
Poorly visible traces of the channel may be seen at
the end of the forest and valley. Up to now, there are
only remains of the foundations of the former mill.
In the early spring up to now, there are blooming snow-
drops that were planted by the family of the miller.
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Niemiensko:

i

e

Stone and brick maintenance development from
the second half of the 19th century and at the be-
ginning of the 20th century.

Distillery from the year 1880. The building of
the former distillery is located next to the en-
trance gate from the road Drawno-Glusko.
The technology and production facilities were
modernised many times, though the origi-
nal material of brick and stone walls was main-
tained as well as the framework and structure of
the production building.

The melioration and irrigation channel from
the second half of the 19th century, led along the
right bank of the Stopica river. It is worth seeing due
to the slop-like, natural (very rarely used) the sys-
tem of irrigation. The irrigating channel is led along
the top line of the irrigated valley. In the later-
al slope of the channel (from the side of the val-
ley) there were applied release locks. As a result,
the water could naturally irrigate the valley.
Hunting palace, known as the castle, was erected
in the years 1922-30 in a neo-renaissance Ger-
man style. A great structure made from red brick
with a differentiated framework, consists in a sto-
ried main and first floor corpus, a perpendicular
wing. It is covered with gable roof with skylights.
The main corpus is connected with an 8-lateral



tower, and the second lower tower, to the south-
ern wing. On the southern side of the palace, there
was a wide viewing terrace. At present, there is
a School and Education Centre for children.

Podegrodzie:

8 court complex: the court from the second half
of the 19th century, park with the area of 2.68
ha with a pond, established at the beginning of
the 20th century and brick and stone maintenance
buildings from the second half of the 19th century.
The Park includes firs and purple beeches. Next to
the park, there is a well-remained grave of former
owners.

Sitnica:

8 the relicts of former milk plant are located left
to the lateral road leading through the forest to
the settlement of Rogoznica. The production of
cheeses was transferred to Glusko in the 1870s.
The milk plant functioned up to 1945. The milk
was transported by a horse-drawn train. Railway
of the train led through the settlement of Springe
Sitnice, Jelenie to Krepa Krajenska. The railway
was dismantled ca. 1950. The housing and produc-
tion estate only remained after the milk plant and
a visible trait of the railway in front of the building.
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Ostrowiec:

8 small settlement between Ostrowiecki Lake and
the Plociczna river, in the centre of the Park,
neighbouring directly with Czarne Lake. In 1808,
the village had 19 houses and almost 100 dwell-
ers. At the beginning of the 19th century there
was a blacksmith’s workshop and a water mill on
the Plociczna. The settlement consists of four
buildings from the 1880s and 1890s, erected by
forest workers (their patterns are typical for north
German construction). In the northern part, there
are ruins of a bricked church, erected probably
in the 18th century. In the church-neighbouring

Evangelican church and cemetary in Ostrowiec
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cemetery, there are graves and iron crosses from
the second half of the 19the century and the begin-
ning of the 20th century. An elm alley leads from
the settlement to the ruins of the church.

Stare Osieczno:

<8 The neo-gothic church from 1867, made of burnt
brick, on the plan of an octagon, relating to
the Lord’s Grave in Jerusalem. Such churches were
erected in the Middle Ages. The person which
founded them obtained total pardon, which was
comparable to the pilgrimage to the Holy Land.

<8 The river port from the first half of the 19th
century. The port was functioning up to 1945.
The Drawa river was operated from Stare Osiec-
zno and for smaller barges to Glusko. The port in
Stare Osieczno could accept 150 tonne barges with
a coal load for local plants, glass works. Up to now,
there was a port channel, in the place of the former
bridge, there has been articial built a causeway.
The vicinity of the former port was used as the pre-
sent-day camping site.

‘8 The former saw mill was erected in 1938.
After the Second World War, devastated as a result
of fire. At present, the place of a former saw mill is
observed as the storing squre with a high factory
chimney. The saw mill was operated by a steam en-
gine, which was taken out in the 1960s.



Tuczno:

<8 castle - former residence of the Wedels from Tucz-
no, at present the hotel and house of a creative work
of the Polish Architects’ Association. It consists of
three wings, creating a horse shoe, located around
a quadrangular; open from the north, square.
In the corners are three small towers. The erec-
tion of the gothic castle was commenced by
the Wedles in 1338, probably in the place of a for-
mer fort, on the hill surrounded from three sides
with swamp lands. The primary structure has
a shape of a square 30x30m. Ca. 1580, the castle
was rebuilt in a late renaissance style, extended
in the years 1608-1631 by southern and western
wings and transformed in the 18th century into the
palace residence in a baroque style. In the half of
the 19th century, there was erected a new western
wing. Partiallydevastated,intheyears1966-76,itwas
rebuilt in a renaissance style from the beginning of
the 17 century.

65



The Plociczna River
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